
1 
 

 

Planning Commission Staff: 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Susan Hartman, Assistant Planner 
 

Planning Commission Members: 
James Clarkson, Chair 
Martin Nichols, Vice-Chair 
Ray Groom, Commissioner 
Stephanie Neumann, Commissioner 
Anita Towslee, Commissioner 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
6:00 PM – May 17, 2016 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, 
please contact  Community Development Director Baker, at 872-6291 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. Hearing assistance devices for the hearing impaired are available from the Presiding Clerk.  
Members of the public may address the Planning Commission on any agenda item, including closed session. 
If you wish to address the Planning Commission on any matter on the Agenda, it is requested that you 
complete a "Request to Address Council/Commission" card and give it to the Presiding Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the Council Meeting.  All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open 
session agenda and which are distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission within 72 hours of a 
Regular Meeting will be available for public inspection at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk or Community 
Development Services Department located at 5555 Skyway, Room 3, at the time the subject writing or 
document is distributed to a majority of the subject body.  Regular business hours are Monday through 
Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

ROLL CALL 

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. Approve the minutes of the April 19, 2016 Regular Planning Commission 
meeting 

2.      COMMUNICATION 

 a.   Recent Council Actions 
 b. Staff Comments 

1



2 
 

3.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

Comments are limited to a maximum of five minutes duration.  If more time is needed, please request staff to 

place the subject on an agenda for a future Commission meeting. 

* * * PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE * * * 

A.    Staff comments                                                    C.    Close hearing to the public 

B.    Open the hearing to the public                             D.    Commission discussion 

        1.Project applicant                                               E.     Motion 

        2.Parties for the project                                        F.    Vote 

        3.Parties against the project 

        4.Rebuttals 

NOTE:  Pursuant to Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001, any person may speak before the 

Commission regarding the matter under consideration for a maximum of five minutes unless granted 

additional time by the Chair. "In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special 

accommodation to participate, please contact the Community Development Dept., at 872-6291 at least 48 

hours in advance of the meeting." 

4.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING - None 

5.      PUBLIC HEARING - None 

6.      OTHER BUSINESS 

6a. Consideration of a request for approval of an extension of time assigned 
to the conditionally approved Mountain Terrace Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map (SD-07-1); APN 054-060-102, 103 and 104 

7.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES 

8.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

 a. Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

9.      ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

2



 
 

P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G    C  O  M  M  I  S  S  I  O  N    M  I  N  U  T  E  S 
 

April 19, 2016 

6:00 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER AT 6:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

ROLL CALL: Commissioners Raymond Groom, Martin Nichols, Anita Towslee and James Clarkson, 

Chairman.  Commissioner Stephanie Neumann was absent.  

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. MOTION BY NICHOLS, SECONDED BY TOWSLEE, Approved the minutes of the March 

16, 2016 Regular Planning Commission meeting.  Roll call vote was unanimous with 

Commissioner Neumann absent and not voting.  

2.      COMMUNICATION 

a. Recent Council Actions:  Development Services Director Baker updated the Commissioners on 

the progress of the Safeway project. They are still pursuing the project and currently working out the 

details to move forward which includes the Safeway Store, additional retail space and a drive through 

pad for a restaurant  and a grant has been awarded for a signal at Black Olive and Skyway which will go 

in regardless of whether or not the Safeway store moves forward.  

 

 b. Staff Comments – None 

 

3.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - None 

4.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING - None 

5.      PUBLIC HEARING - None. 

6.      OTHER BUSINESS 

6a. Acceptance and referral of the Planning Commission Annual Report for calendar year 2015 to 

the Town Council regarding the present implementation status of the 1994 Paradise General Plan 

Housing Element.  

3



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 2 

  

Assistant Planner Susan Hartman informed the Commissioners that this is the annual report to the State 

Department of Housing and Community Development, this report details how many new housing starts 

at all affordability levels for 2015 and progress towards the housing program objectives in the Housing 

Element. The Town has issued 50 permits for new housing units and that number is deducted from the 

housing allocation number for the reporting period of 2014 to 2022 leaving 573 housing units for the 

remainder of the reporting period.  2015 highlights include the grant award for the sewer feasibility 

study, density bonus agreement for three deed restricted units with the Carousel motel and modifying 

parking regulations for senior housing.   

MOTION BY NICHOLS, seconded by Clarkson, Accepted and referred the Planning Commission 

Annual Report for calendar year 2015 to the Town Council regarding the present implementation status 

of the 1994 Paradise General Plan Housing Element.  Roll call vote was unanimous with Commissioner 

Neumann absent and not voting.   

6b. Acceptance and referral of the Planning Commission Annual Report for calendar year 2015 to 

the Town Council regarding the present implementation status of the 1994 Paradise General 

Plan. 

Community Development Director Craig Baker informed the Commissioners that this is the General 

Plan Implementation status report for 2015, outlines policy and implementation measures in the 1994 

General Plan except the Housing Element.  Most of the implementation over the last calendar year  was 

public/street improvements with Public Works staff-secured several grants and achieving construction of 

several projects throughout town.  The Plan was intended to be 15 year plan and has been in effect for 

22 years so most of the items have been implemented.  The Planning Commission previously adopted a 

resolution stating that due to the lack of growth the General Plan is still valid.  Mr.  Baker stated that 

there is approximately $200,000 in a fund reserved specifically to update the plan.   

MOTION BY CLARKSON, seconded by Towslee, Accepted and referred the Planning Commission 

Annual Report for calendar year 2015 to the Town Council regarding the present implementation status 

of the 1994 Paradise General Plan.  Roll call vote was unanimous with Commissioner Neumann absent 

and not voting.   

7.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES 

8.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

a. Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

Mr. Baker informed the Commissioners that an incomplete Site Plan Review application was submitted 

for a Community Care facility at the Lutheran Church on Luther Drive that would provide 

Administrative services to the homeless and provide showers, laundry services and employment services 

for up to 15 clients per day; a Chico Engineer is working on a parcel map subdivision on East Dottie; a 

potential six lot subdivision on Indian Rock Road;  a map extension for the Paradise Land Project - a 40 

lot planned development on Clark Road; and, the Paradise Community Village Project will be 

requesting an extension of their map.  

9.      ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Clarkson adjourned the Planning Commission meeting at 6:24 p.m. 

Date approved: 

4



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 3 

  

 

By:  ____________________________________ 

 James Clarkson, Chairman 

 

Attest: ____________________________________ 

 Dina A Volenski, CMC, Town Clerk 
 

5



 M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
 
TO:  Paradise Planning Commission Agenda No. 6 (a)  
 
FROM:  Craig Baker, Community Development Director  
 
SUBJECT: Application for Approval of an Extension of Time Assigned to the Conditionally 

Approved Mountain Terrace Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (SD-07-1); APN 
054-060-102, 103 and 104) 

 
DATE:  May 11, 2016 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On May 14, 2009, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and conditionally 
approved the above-noted vesting tentative subdivision map application authorizing the 
division of an 11.47 acre land area located on the east side of Clark Road between Pearson 
Road and Buschmann Road into 64 lots (60 residential lots and 4 lots to be held in common) 
subject to 53 conditions of approval. On July 28, 2009, the Town Council adopted Town 
Ordinance No. 493, assigning Multiple-Family/Planned Development (MF/PD) zoning to the site 
in order to accommodate the proposed design of the subdivision. 
 
Town records indicate that the Town’s conditional approval of this tentative subdivision map 
and its authorization to be completed as a recorded subdivision map approval would have 
expired on May 24, 2012. However, in consideration of the poor economy, the California State 
Legislature automatically extended the life of all unexpired land division approvals in the state 
several times. As a result of these legislative actions, the expiration date for the Map was 
ultimately extended to May 24, 2016.  In anticipation of this circumstance, the project 
applicant’s agent, NorthStar Engineering, submitted a formal request on May 5, 2016 for the 
Planning Commission to grant an additional six year period, expiring on May 24, 2022 in order 
to accommodate fulfillment of the map conditions and recordation of the map as proposed.  
Pursuant to PMC Section 16.08.085 that action automatically extended the subdivision map for 
60 days or until the application for the extension is approved, conditionally approved, or 
denied, whichever occurs first.  
 
The statutory provisions of PMC Chapter 16.07 (Subdivision of Five or More Lots) empowers the 
Planning Commission to legally exercise discretion on behalf of the Town of Paradise to either 
approve or deny applications for a time extension for any subdivision map.  PMC section 
16.07.060 stipulates that the Planning Commission may extend an approved subdivision map 
up to an additional six years. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The design of the original subdivision map application proposed to create 60 residential lots 

6



Planning Commission          -2-               May 11, 2016 
 

and 4 lots held in common to accommodate placement of clustered wastewater treatment 
components and storm water detention. Lot sizes proposed to be accommodated by the 
MF/PD zoning  would range in size from 0.08 to 0.13 acre and are compliant with the density 
requirements of the MF/PD zoning. The project was accompanied by required environmental 
review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) that resulted in the 
adoption of a mitigated negative declaration document  and a finding that all project-induced 
impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level with mitigation measures assigned to 
the project.  
 
On behalf of the project applicant, NorthStar Engineering has indicated that due to the 
downturn in the economy and its effects upon the real estate market, it has not been feasible 
to fulfill all of the project conditions and record the map prior to the May 24, 2016 expiration 
date. A review of the project file and documentation submitted with the time extension request 
reveals that the applicant has incurred expenses totaling approximately $157,359.00 pursuing 
the project, including development of road and drainage improvement plans, wastewater 
requirements, easement abandonment, vegetation management and surveying costs.  A 
number of conditions remain unfulfilled (construction of frontage improvements, interior 
roadways, tree felling, establishing monumentation, etc.).  
 
The statutory authority for the Planning Commission to approve an extension application is 
contained within Paradise Municipal Code (PMC) Section 16.07.060, which states that the 
commission must find evidence that a “good faith effort” has been made in satisfying the 
conditions of the approved subdivision map.  
  
The circumstances outlined above compel staff to be supportive of the request for a six year 
extension and therefore staff recommends that the Planning Commission grant the a six year 
extension of time for assignment to this subdivision map in order to provide the applicant 
ample opportunity to successfully complete the remaining conditions of project approval and 
record a final map.  
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Adopt a MOTION TO: 
 
1. Approve, on behalf of the Town of Paradise, the granting of a six year time extension for 

assignment to the conditionally approved Mountain Terrace Vesting  Tentative 
Subdivision Map (SD-07-1), thereby creating a new subdivision map expiration date of 
May 24, 2022. 

 
APPEAL PROCESS: In accordance with the provisions of PMC Section 16.07.060(B), in the event 
that the Planning Commission denies the time extension application the project applicant can 
appeal such decision to the Town Council. 

7



Planning Commission          -3-               May 11, 2016 
 

 
If a written appeal to the Town Council is not filed with the Town Clerk within ten calendar days 
of any denial decision, then the Planning Commission decision becomes legally effective. 
  

8



Planning Commission          -4-               May 11, 2016 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
 FOR 
 
 MOUNTAIN TERRACE VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP TIME EXTENSION REQUEST 
 
 
1. Project vicinity map. 
 
2. Time extension request letter from NorthStar Engineering, dated April 26, 2016, with 

attached list of expenses incurred pursuing development of the project.  
 
3. Mountain Terrace Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map conditions of approval 
 
4. Mountain Terrace Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Sheets 1 and 2) 
 
5. Mountain Terrace Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map project description 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25


	Top
	1a. 05/17/16 1a PC Minutes 4-19-16
	pc_min_041916.docx

	6a. 05/17/16 6a Subdivision time extension request
	6a Mountain terrace Time Ext Mem.docx
	vic map.pdf
	ext request ltr.pdf
	conditions.pdf
	mt1.pdf
	mt2.pdf

	Bottom

